ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 7, 2003
1: 05 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Hugh Fate, Co-Chair
Representative Beverly Masek, Vice Chair
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Cheryll Heinze
Representative Bob Lynn

Representative David CGuttenberg
Representative Beth Kerttul a

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representative M ke Chenault, Co-Chair
Representative Kelly Wl f

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 24

"An Act relating to intergovernnental agreenents
managenent of fish or gane."

- MOVED CSHB 24(RES) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 86
"An Act relating to permts issued by the state.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 24

SHORT TI TLE: AGREEMENTS ON MANAGEMENT OF FI SH AND GAME
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) WEYHRAUCH, WH TAKER

regar di ng

Jrn-Date Jr n- Page Acti on

01/21/03 0037 (H PREFI LE RELEASED (1/ 10/ 03)

01/ 21/ 03 0037 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS

01/ 21/03 0037 (H RES, JUD

03/ 05/ 03 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 05/ 03 (H Heard & Held -- Meeting

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- March 7, 2003



Post poned to After Session --

M NUTE( RES)
03/ 05/ 03 (H M NUTE( RES)
03/ 07/ 03 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
BILL: HB 86

SHORT TI TLE: | NJUNCTI ONS AGAI NST PERM TTED PROJECTS
SPONSOR( S): REPRESENTATI VE( S) FATE

Jrn-Date Jrn- Page Action
02/ 10/ 03 0169 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME -
REFERRALS
02/ 10/ 03 0169 (H RES, JUD
02/ 21/ 03 (H RES AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 124
02/ 21/ 03 (H Fail ed To Move Qut O
Comm ttee
02/ 21/ 03 (H M NUTE( RES)
02/ 24/ 03 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124
02/ 24/ 03 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>
03/07/ 03 (H RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE WEYHRAUCH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke as the sponsor of HB 24.

JI M POUND, Staff

to Representative Hugh Fate

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on HB 86; provided information
about the changes nmade in the proposed conmttee substitute.

KATHRYN KURTZ, Attorney

Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered |egal questions and addressed
concerns relating to HB 86.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 03-11, SIDE A
Number 0001

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 7, 2003



CO CHAI R HUGH FATE cal l ed the House Resources Standing Commttee

neeting to order at 1:05 p.m Representative's Fate, Masek,
Gatto, Heinze, Lynn, and Guttenberg were present at the call to
order. Representative Kerttula arrived as the neeting was in
pr ogr ess.

HB 24- AGREEMENTS ON MANAGEMENT OF FI SH AND GAME

CO CHAI R FATE announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 24, "An Act relating to intergovernnental
agreenents regardi ng nanagenent of fish or gane."

Nunmber 0076

CO- CHAIR FATE noted that HB 24 had been heard on 3/5/03 and had
been held for the purpose of hearing nore public testinony.
[Version S. |abeled 23-LS0135\S, Uternohle, 3/4/03, had been
adopted as a work draft.]

Nunmber 0156

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK turned attention to page 1, line 6, and she
asked for clarification as to the type of board naned in the
bill.

Number 0203

REPRESENTATI VE BRUCE  WEYHRAUCH, Al aska State Legislature,
speaking as one of the tw sponsors of HB 24, said it was
intended to be any board with managenent jurisdiction over fish
and gane resources [such as] the Al aska Departnment of Fish and
Gane (ADF&QO) .

REPRESENTATI VE MASEK asked Representative Wyhrauch if he
thought the |anguage read well enough to reflect [that
intention] in the bill

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH said if the entity charged wth
devel oping that with the National Park Service (NPS) is going to
cone up with that kind of agreenent, it's great to be broad
enough to incorporate any of those entities - departnment or
board - with managenent jurisdiction for the state over fish and
gane resources, so it would broad enough. He offered his belief
that it was intended to be generally broad to incorporate that
and "sweep it in."

Number 0326

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 7, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked for an overview of t he

[intention] of the bill and what the problens had been in the
past .
Nunber 0362

REPRESENTATI VE WEYHRAUCH di scussed the area in question, which
is about 600,000 marine acres in dacier Bay National Park and
Preserve that are involved in a jurisdictional dispute between
NPS [and the State of Alaska]. He nentioned the quite title for
subnerged | ands, and nanagenent jurisdiction of the fisheries in
t hose waters. Representati ve Weyhrauch said the United States
Senate, through S. 501, had adopted a bill that required the
state and the federal governnent to enter into co-managenent
agreenents on fisheries in the waters outside the park. He said
this bill [HB 24] is intended to ensure that any co-nmanagenent
agreenent between the State of Alaska and NPS is reviewed,
because it is inportant [to assert] that the state did not cede
its jurisdictional managenent rights over fisheries in those
waters to NPS, so [the federal governnent] doesn't becone the
manager of Al aska's conmercial fisheries.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said Steven Giles, Deputy Secretary, U S
Department of the Interior, indicated that there are nore than
22,000 rivers, streans, and lakes in Alaska that may be
navi gabl e under applicable federal standards and that it was
time that the federal governnent quit acting as if those
wat erways belong to it.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO expressed concerns about the federa
[governnment's involvenment in jurisdictional issues], but he
noted he was in favor of the bill.

CO CHAIR FATE noted that it was a big concern to many conmttee
menbers and was aired at the last neeting concerning HB 24. He
said it's still a concern whether this bill has an effect on
that particular aspect of navigable waters, although it is a
needed pi ece of |egislation.

Number 0702

[ Not e: The bill packet also contained a nearly identical
proposed sponsor substitute, Version 23-LS0135\Q Uternohle,
2/ 21/ 03, which was never adopted. A notion to report Version Q
CSHB 24(RES) was i nadvertently nmade. ]

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- March 7, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE HEINZE noved to report CSHB 24 [Version 23-
LS0135\S, U ernmohle, 3/4/03] out of committee wth individual
reconmendati ons and the acconpanying fiscal notes. There being
no objection, CSHB 24(RES) was reported from the House Resources
St andi ng Conmittee.

HB 86-1 NJUNCTI ONS AGAI NST PERM TTED PRQIECTS

CO- CHAI R FATE announced that the next order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 86, "An Act relating to permts issued by the
state.”

Nunmber 0776

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN noved to rescind the action of failing to
nove HB 86 out of commttee [on 2/21/03], and asked for
unani nous consent. There being no objection, HB 86 was before
the commttee.

Nunber 0812

REPRESENTATIVE LYNN noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS), Ilabeled 23-LS0349\S, Kurtz, 3/6/03, as the
wor ki ng docunent . There being no objection, Version S was
before the comittee.

The conmittee took an at-ease from1:18 p.m to 1:20 p. m

Number 0850

JIM POUND, Staff to Representative Hugh Fate, Alaska State
Legislature, testified. M. Pound noted that some changes had
been nade to the proposed CS because of sonme concerns that were
expressed at a previous conmttee neeting. He said the one
concern is that as the bill was witten, it may be interpreted

that there's a possibility the comm ssioner would not be able to
stop the project for an error through the procedure or if there
was a legitimate concern, under [subsection] (a), that was a
l egitimate appeal process. M. Pound said [subsection] (b)
provides that the conmssioner is able to stop a project if
there's an error in the procedure or if a concern is brought to
hi m her based on pertinent new scientific information or new
recogni zed | ocal knowl edge. He indicated that the definition of
"permt" and which departnments [the bill] would affect were also
clarified.

Number 1012

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 7, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE GATTO nentioned that he is troubled by the term
"pertinent new'. He indicated that soneone may be able to use
this | anguage to stop a project.

Nunber 1132

CO CHAI R FATE, sponsor of HB 86, noted that he was not present
during the last commttee neeting on HB 86 and he offered his

under st andi ng that the word "pertinent" was offered by
Representative Gatto as a clarifying anmendnent. He suggested
t hat [the |anguage] "new scientific" Is not j ust new
information, but is "new scientific information". Co-Chair Fate

noted that he had accepted "pertinent” as a clarifying anmendnment
t hat Representative Gatto had proposed.

Number 1150

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO i ndi cated that the |anguage "not previously
di scl osed” may be nore appropriate.

Nunmber 1176

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE i ndicated that the word "pertinent"” seened
clear to her.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO tal ked about a hypothetical situation and
the extent to which a person may go if it was [his or her] goa
to stop a project He indicated that an attorney may find the
| anguage to be anbi guous.

The commttee took an at-ease from1:30 p.m to 1:34 p.m

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO turned attention to Sec. 46.35.400 and
asked if there was a way to interpret the word "new'.

Nunber 1435

KATHRYN  KURTZ, At t or ney, Legislative Legal and Research
Services, testified. She offered her understanding that there
are many ways to interpret the word "new'.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Ms. Kurtz for clarification

M5. KURTZ said this draft does not specify. She remarked, "New

is new, and when you have a word like "new that is a common
word, ... you could ask everyone sitting around the table, and

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 7, 2003



if you [have] different ideas about what new neans, that
i ndicates the breadth of interpretation which one could apply to
that particular word." She said this draft does not have a
particular tineline for "how new is new."

CO-CHAI R FATE asked, in this context, if "new would nean not
previ ously used.

M5. KURTZ, in response, said one m ght argue that.

REPRESENTATI VE HElI NZE asked Ms. Kurtz if she could foresee any
problemw th [the | anguage] "new scientific information".

M5. KURTZ said there is always the potential for litigation in
al nrost anything, but particularly where the |anguage of a
statute isn't clear or tends to lend itself to nore than one

meani ng. She said if there are people who interpret the word
"new' differently and it's inportant enough to them it 1is
conceivable that there [is a potential] for litigation that

woul d revol ve around the neaning of the word "new'.
Nunber 1543

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE i ndicated the |anguage "newly recogni zed"
would also have to be |ooked at [because it also refers to
"new'] . She asked, "Unless there's a real danger of ... us
opening up to litigation, are we splitting hairs here?”

M5. KURTZ said she was not sure how to answer that, since she
had m ssed the [beginning] of the neeting and was not sure that
she had gotten a good perspective of the whole discussion that
had al ready taken pl ace.

CO CHAIR FATE stated that the discussion was on the use of [the
| anguage] "pertinent new scientific information"” and the neaning
of "new'. He said it was discussed that alnobst anything is not
immuune to a cause of action or to interpretation. Co-Chair Fate
offered his view as sponsor that it would certainly have to be
adj udi cated as to what "new' neans. He said he didn't know if
[the commttee] could determ ne the neaning of "new'. Per haps,
he suggested, it would be up to sonme judicial body or to the
commi ssioner, whomthis is remanded back to anyway if there's an
appeal, to determ ne what new neans.

Nunmber 1680

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -7- March 7, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA suggested that the sponsor's intention
is that people who have gone through sone kind of a process not

be delayed inappropriately. She said the conmttee hadn't
tal ked about what injunctions are normally wused for or what
enjoining really mneans. Representative Kerttula indicated she

would like Ms. Kurtz to explain what an injunction is and how
t hat happens. She suggested having a small subcommittee on the
bill [with the objective] of coming to an understandi ng of what
the goal is, because the |anguage is "horribly" broad, and there
woul d be terrible problens with enforcenent.

Nunber 1765

M5. KURTZ explained that an injunction is a renmedy that the
court can offer, and that the court mght give nonetary damages
in some suits. She said an injunction is where one party goes
to the court and asks the court to nmake another party stop doing
sonething. She said in the case of a project, it mght be used
to stop work on a project wuntil [the party requesting the
injunction] gets its lawsuit and other issues figured out. The
[injunction] can remain as long as the court determnes it's
necessary, she said.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked what standards are normally used
in Alaska. She noted that an injunction is pretty dramatic, and
normal Iy the court doesn't like to grant injunctions.

M5. KURTZ offered her belief that the court would be |ooking for
sonme sort of irreparable harmthat m ght occur if the injunction
is not granted.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if it would have to be a pretty
dramatic [situation] for the court to take action, nornmally.

M5. KURTZ, in response, said there are different kinds of
injunctions, but it's certainly sonmething the court would
consi der.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if +the <court wuld grant an
injunction if it felt all of the questions of the person asking
to stop a project had been answered previously, if the agency
had al ready | ooked at everything, and if the court was satisfied
t hat had happened.

M5. KURTZ said the court does not have to grant an injunction
just because it is asked for one. She explained that the court

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 7, 2003



woul d certainly ook at the nerits of the argunent and [try to
determ ne] whether it saw that harm happeni ng or not.

Nunber 1850

M5. KURTZ, in response to a question from Representative
Kerttula, said there could be nmany reasons why one would ask for
an injunction. It could occur in many different types of

| awsui ts bei ng brought for nmany different reasons.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked if this bill would conpletely,
radically change how injunctions are governed in Alaska for
permtting.

M5. KURTZ said this bill would seem to set a significantly
di fferent standard.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA asked Ms. Kurtz if she was aware of any
other states that Iimt injunctions for permits in this nmanner.

M5. KURTZ, in response, said she was not personally aware of
t hat .

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA sai d she thought that hel ped explain her
basi ¢ concerns about the bill

Number 1920

CO CHAIR FATE said there had been cases where there was either
an objection in the best public interest, which was never
clearly defined, or an objection to an "eyesore," which sone
people didn't [view] as an eyesore, that helped in obtaining the
injunction. He offered his belief that the 9th G rcuit Court of
Appeals is 80 percent wong, and that it makes decisions that
stop projects. Co-Chair Fate said he wanted to draw attention
to [his belief] that the court is not immune to bias.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA said she thought those were the kinds of

facts that are really inportant. She suggested that maybe a
subcomm ttee could [identify] what the intent [of bill] really
is. Representative Kerttula said she thought this piece of

| egi slation was enornmously broad in its inpact, and not really
directed to what the concern is.

Nunber 1997

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 9- March 7, 2003



CO CHAIR FATE noted that [attorneys] in [Legislative Legal and
Research Services] had reviewed [the bill]. He remarked, "If it
is the intent to slow a bill so that in the face of nounting
comm ttee assignnments, because of the heavy load that is com ng
down on us, ... to slowthis bill and stop it because of that, |
won't tolerate it for that reason.” He continued by saying if
there is a valid reason that [commttee nenbers] think there
shoul d be a subcommttee, he would entertain it.

CO CHAI R FATE noted that the bill still has to be heard in front
of the House Judiciary Standing Conmittee, and he said it was
his hope that sonme of these issues [would be addressed] at that
tinme. Co-Chair Fate noted the intent of the bill was to allow
projects to proceed wi thout stopping for reasons that were not
val i d. He suggested that those valid reasons are enbodied in
this bill, so that [a decision] can be remanded back to the
commi ssioner; so there is an appeal process, and there is no
design to hold any kind of a public appeals process up. Co-
Chair Fate said [the bill] is designed to allow a project to
[ proceed] wi thout sonme type of nebul ous reason for stopping it.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA posed a hypothetical situation, and she
asked if there would there be a risk that [individuals who
object to a permtting project] would have to file a lawsuit,
and yet wouldn't get an injunction under this standard.

M5. KURTZ, in response, said that raises an interesting
guestion, because this does require new scientific information,
so, yes, there is a risk that sonebody would interpret this
statute to block that type of suit. She offered her belief that
if the state constitution is being violated, it would al so raise
guestions about the validity of a statute.

REPRESENTATI VE KERTTULA renarked, "So, you've got the statute at
risk, in and of itself."

M5. KURTZ responded, "In that hypothetical [situation], yes."
Number 2166

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if there was a certain point of
harm potential harm imm nent danger, or damage that had to be
reached in order to get an injunction, and what had to be proved

to the courts in order to get an injunction.

M5. KURTZ said she wi shed that she'd been prepared with a good
case setting forth the exact standards that the Al aska Suprene

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -10- March 7, 2003



Court has established for granting injunctions. She said it is
sonmething that is frequently requested, and in preparing for a
trial court argunent, one would certainly have it in hand. MVe.
Kurtz said it becones the decision of the court as to whether
that standard has been satisfied in a particular case. She said
generally there is presentation of sone sort of evidence
required to get an injunction, which mght take the form of an
affidavit, for instance.

REPRESENTATI VE HEINZE asked if the <courts wuld grant an
injunction for lack of evidence or |ack of information.

M5. KURTZ explained that if the court doesn't have sufficient
information to evaluate a legal claim she would guess that [the
court] would not grant an injunction based on that |ack of
i nformation.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE r emar ked, "So, they could."

M5. KURTZ, in response, said in general she would say a court
needs sufficient information to evaluate [both sides of the
i ssue]j.

Number 2273

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked how the word "pertinent"” applies
to [the language] "pertinent new scientific information". He
remarked, "It seens to ne that the whole concept under new
scientific information's not [really] pertinent. "New seens
to allow the question; ... you can just keep asking it if
sonething cones up that's [a] pertinent situation on a permt."

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked if this allows new information
to be reevaluated constantly every tinme sonething happens.

M5. KURTZ asked Representative Guttenberg if he envisioned court
cases that go on forever.

Nunmber 2386

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG posed a situation in which a person
frivolously wants to stop a project, and every day sonething new
happens that m ght not have been pertinent the day before, but
woul d be pertinent in the follow ng days. He asked if that
would "keep the ball rolling" for that person who is [l ooking
for a reason to stop a project].

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -11- March 7, 2003



M5. KURTZ told the conmmttee that the court system is an
institution with limted resources that tends to not like to be
confronted with the sane issue repeatedly.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked, if [the situation were to
change], whether it would be considered "new and pertinent”
[information].

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE suggested returning to the [original bil
that did not contain the |anguage] "new and pertinent." She
asked if [this |anguage] would [cause] problens.

CO CHAIR FATE explained that this isn't new |anguage; it cane
out of other pieces of legislation including the "public
interest land legislation,” and that it had been used before.
He said he is prepared to delay [the bill] so that [Legislative
Legal and Research Services] could address the constitutionality
of [the |anguage]. Co-Chair Fate suggested that there's no use
to put a bill, regardless of how good it is thought to be,
through the process if it's going to have constitutiona
chal | enges.

CO CHAI R FATE said he had no problem in finding out whether the
bill [would potentially] have constitutional challenges. He
said there is a need for legislation such as this, and he
offered an exanple where a permt had been issued, and after
approximately $4 mllion and seven years [of litigation], the
permt was basically reissued, and it was because of an
enjoinment to stop the project. Co-Chair Fate remarked, "So it
does happen, and as we try to progress and devel op our State of
Al aska, and do it properly, ... we don't need sonebody that
doesn't agree with us, from outside or within the state
stoppi ng projects that have been properly permtted.”

Nunber 2512

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO offered his belief that the bill needed to
be noved forward with the new [language as it appears]. He
noted that [the bill] was going to the [House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee], which he suggested [could address the issue
regardi ng the | anguage] better than this committee.

CO- CHAIR FATE said it is his hope that before [the bill noves
from commttee], there would be sone determ nation on either a
constitutional fix or the constitutionality of it as
Representative Kerttula suggested, it m ght be problem

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -12- March 7, 2003



REPRESENTATI VE MASEK said she had pretty broad concerns on the

constitutional [aspect] of the bill, and she felt that the
commttee should be granted the opportunity to hear nore on this
subject matter, because it is a resource issue. She said she

would feel nore confortable getting nore background on [the
bill] before noving it [fromcommttee].

Nunmber 2643

CO- CHAIR FATE clarified that a notion had not been nade. He
noted the [commttee's] very tight schedule and his intention to
request [Legislative Legal and Research Services to address
issues related to the bill]. Co-Chair Fate indicated the intent
of the bill is to get the state noving in the proper direction
for proper devel opnent.

Number 2721

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE obj ect ed. She said she thought [the
concerns could be addressed in House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee].

CO CHAIR FATE agreed that it can be handled in there, but didn't
fully agree that it could be handl ed any nore expediently there
than in the current conmttee.

[HB 86 was hel d over. ]

ADJ OURNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at 2:00 p. m

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -13- March 7, 2003



